oW [arth
s .
Reporting
Services

O
(72,

Negotiations Bulletin
A Reporting Service for Environment and Development Negotiations
Online at http://www.iisd.ca/csd/ipm17/

Vol. 5 No. 268

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development (IISD)

Thursday, 26 February 2009

CSD-17 IPM HIGHLIGHTS:
WEDNESDAY, 25 FEBRUARY 2009

The Intersessional Preparatory Meeting (IPM) for the 17th
session of the Commission on Sustainable Development (CSD-
17) concluded its discussion of rural development and discussed
land during the morning, and addressed the issue of drought
during the afternoon.

RURAL DEVELOPMENT

The REPUBLIC of KOREA underscored mainstreaming rural
development in national development frameworks. PAKISTAN
highlighted the need to focus on real life examples and praised
the work of the Aga Khan Rural Support Program in rural
communities in Pakistan. Youth and Children expressed hope for
a successful Doha Development Agenda.

LAND

Panelist Harold Liversage, International Fund for Agricultural
Development, underscored the importance of land tenure
security for economic growth and poverty reduction. Panelist
John Bruce, Land and Development Solutions International,
discussed shared-use resources and proposed demarcating and
registering common-use areas, instituting model by-laws, and
providing community-level technical assistance. Panelist Luc
Gnacadja, Executive Secretary of the UN Convention to Combat
Desertification (UNCCD), presented a framework to address
land degradation, and underlined the role of land in carbon
sequestration.

The G-77/CHINA outlined several policy options to harness
land for poverty eradication and food security, and said financing
remains the main hurdle. The EU: emphasized proper land
use and management, equitable access to land, enforceable
land rights and transparent land policy; called attention to the
2004 FAO Voluntary Guidelines that support the progressive
realization of the right to food and the 2004 EU Land Policy
Guidelines; and said efficient and sustainable use of water
resources is fundamental. Micronesia, on behalf of AOSIS,
said: small island States’ management of land, coastal-zones
and oceans need to incorporate climate change adaptation
strategies; and fiscal measures and financial instruments could
be targeted to help optimize land use. The ARAB GROUP
suggested: undertaking land censuses and developing data
bases; adopting legislation to protect water resources and land
against degradation; enhancing the capacity of scientific research
organizations; and developing long- and short-term policies for
the use of underground water.

Tonga, on behalf of PSIDS, underscored its UN General
Assembly (UNGA) draft resolution on Security and Climate
Change (A/63/L.8), which stresses the security implications

for the disappearance of territory. CHILE proposed the use

of mechanisms like payments for environmental services for
sustainable land management (SLM). SOUTH AFRICA said
efforts to formalize and secure land rights must be supported
by policies. The US emphasized coherent land policies and
scientifically sound management practices for sustainable land
productivity, and highlighted good land governance principles,
strategic technology use and women’s land rights. CANADA
prioritized measures to increase compatibility of land use
practices with landscape capacity and to expedite appropriate
information development, management and application.
SWITZERLAND emphasized tenure rights and payments for
ecosystem services for SLM, and called for an international
instrument on the sustainable use of soil.

Indigenous Peoples emphasized the need to involve
indigenous peoples in land reforms and to involve women in
all stages of programme development, implementation and
evaluation. INDONESIA said preservation of forest resources
must not be overlooked, and linkages between SLM and climate
change and conflict over land should be considered. NIGERIA,
supported by IRAN and GHANA, proposed that UNGA’s
high-level discussion on climate change in September include
attention to the nexus between climate change, land degradation
and desertification.

FAO said the Clean Development Mechanism should
include soil carbon sequestration in agricultural lands in a post-
2012 regime. ISRAEL emphasized policies that promote land
ownership, economic growth and sustainable management of
natural resources. UN-HABITAT suggested a shift to a focus on
security of tenure.

IRAN underlined the use of satellite technology for land-
use planning, and emphasized land tenure systems in SLM.
ECUADOR highlighted national efforts to address land, and
supported Bolivia’s proposal to designate a UN International
Day for Mother Earth. MALAWTI highlighted its latest land
reform processes and highlighted measures for SLM, including
payments for ecosystem services.

GUATEMALA called attention to conflicts over land,
particularly when organized crime has taken over protected
areas, and indicated a role for international assistance with this
problem. NGOs suggested using a human rights framework
to address the unequal power relationships behind unjust land
tenure structures. NORWAY emphasized the importance of:
SLM and equitable access to land for sustainable development
and poverty reduction; soil protection in ensuring food security;
protection of productive areas to reduce soil loss; and local
adaptation through participatory processes.

BOLIVIA said its constitution has incorporated traditional
and indigenous knowledge, gender and participatory processes in
land and natural resource management. CAMBODIA expressed

This issue of the Earth Negotiations Bulletin © <enb@jiisd.org> is written and edited by Wagaki Mwangi, Tanya Rosen, and Lynn Wagner, Ph.D. The Editor is Pamela S. Chasek,
Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org> and the Director of IISD Reporting Services is Langston James “Kimo” Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>. The Sustaining Donors of the Bulletin are the United
Kingdom (through the Department for International Development — DFID), the Government of the United States of America (through the Department of State Bureau of Oceans
and International Environmental and Scientific Affairs), the Government of Canada (through CIDA), the Danish Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the German Federal Ministry for
Economic Cooperation and Development (BMZ), the German Federal Ministry for the Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety (BMU), the Netherlands Ministry of
Foreign Affairs, the European Commission (DG-ENV), and the Italian Ministry for the Environment, Land and Sea. General Support for the Bulletin during 2009 is provided by the
Norwegian Ministry of Foreign Affairs, the Government of Australia, the Austrian Federal Ministry of Agriculture, Forestry, Environment and Water Management, the Ministry of
Environment of Sweden, the New Zealand Ministry of Foreign Affairs and Trade, SWAN International, Swiss Federal Office for the Environment (FOEN), the Finnish Ministry for
Foreign Affairs, the Japanese Ministry of Environment (through the Institute for Global Environmental Strategies - IGES), the Japanese Ministry of Economy, Trade and Industry
(through the Global Industrial and Social Progress Research Institute - GISPRI), and the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP). Funding for translation of the Bulletin
into French has been provided by the International Organization of the Francophonie (IOF). Funding for the translation of the Bulletin into Spanish has been provided by the Ministry
of Environment of Spain. The opinions expressed in the Bulletin are those of the authors and do not necessarily reflect the views of IISD or other donors. Excerpts from the Bulletin
may be used in non-commercial publications with appropriate academic citation. For information on the Bulletin, including requests to provide reporting services, contact the
Director of IISD Reporting Services at <kimo@iisd.org>, +1-646-536-7556 or 300 East 56th St., 11A, New York, New York 10022, United States of America. The ENB Team at
CSD-17 IPM can be contacted by e-mail at <lynn@jiisd.org>.




& P
N @ ¥
T|Reporting
L|Services

Thursday, 26 February 2009

Vol. 5 No. 268 Page 2

support for land reform policies, community-based management
of land and diversification of crops. MEXICO highlighted how
conservation agriculture incorporating agro-ecological practices
can be the solution to land and water conservation, and noted the
importance of promoting payments for ecosystem services and
mechanisms to appraise policies.

GHANA supported discussion of the climate change-
desertification nexus in Copenhagen, and invited support to
complete its ongoing land and water management programs.
Business and Industry described replicable land management
practices, including conservation tillage, development corridors,
and integrated crop management. CUBA underscored the
importance of political will in implementing policy proposals
with examples from its response to extreme weather events
in 2008. The REPUBLIC of KOREA emphasized that
appropriate water policies are important for agriculture and
SLM. ARGENTINA supported an integrated approach to
the components of this issue and incorporation of climate
change, and said payments for ecosystem services should be in
accordance with WTO agreements.

Panelist Liversage highlighted that land rights may involve
family and group rights and can be linked to water rights.
Panelist Bruce emphasized that, in the long run, it is better to
focus on creating incentives than to focus on enforcement in
relation to property rights. Panelist Gnacadja emphasized that
land is a win-win way to address many of the current crises.

DROUGHT

Panelist Constance Neely, Heifer International, highlighted
the role of grazing and agro-ecological practice to manage
ecosystems. Panelist Jeffrey Herrick, US Department of
Agriculture, noted the importance of integrating scientific and
local knowledge in responding to drought. The G-77/CHINA
said this session should focus on means of implementation. The
EU emphasized that the UNCCD is a powerful tool to provide a
framework for the protection, sustainable use and management
of water resources.

Antigua and Barbuda, on behalf of AOSIS, suggested
upgrading infrastructure for water access and storage, organizing
public awareness campaigns regarding water use and efficiency,
and studying ocean desertification. BARBADOS said it is
seeking alliances to help with drought monitoring and water
harvesting technologies. CANADA noted benefits from
developing and maintaining agreements on drought and climate
variability. CHILE said the development of drought-tolerant
plants or rehabilitation of resources requires safeguards.

MEXICO underscored the need to develop capacity to
generate sustainable development systems and drought-resistant
plants. NGOs noted that investing in sustainable practices is
crucial to improving drought mitigation. The US highlighted the
shift in its drought policy from an emphasis on drought relief to
a forward-looking stance of preparedness to reduce vulnerability.
The G-77/CHINA, EU and MEXICO highlighted the
importance of integrating drought into national plans. NORWAY
recommended, inter alia, building capacity for climate change
adaptation and disaster risk reduction, particularly in vulnerable
farmer and pastoralist communities and prioritizing drylands
issues in national development plans. SOUTH AFRICA
said priorities should include investment in research and
development, especially for disaster scenario planning.

AUSTRALIA highlighted the role of governments in
providing frameworks that allow producers to adopt self-reliant
approaches for drought. SWITZERLAND called attention to
gaps in the tools, methodologies and coordination efforts at
national and regional levels, and said the Sahara and Sahel
Observatory is a model for other regions concerned with
drought. The ARAB STATES proposed developing early warning
systems, supporting forecasting through field observation and

remote sensing, defining adaptation measures, and developing
policies and strategies to protect coastal areas from sea-level rise
and increased salinity of sea water.

IRAN highlighted, inter alia, the need to implement multi-
dimensional policies and to examine how public bodies,
households and businesses can reduce the impacts and costs of
drought. The World Meteorological Organization highlighted
some of the recommendations on coping with increasing
droughts from the International Workshop on Drought and
Extreme Temperatures held in Beijing, China, in February
2009. The Scientific and Technological Community provided
recommendations on how to, infer alia, improve early warning
systems for drought. MALAWI suggested that CSD-17
encourage new initiatives concerning drought-resistant crops,
water harvesting and individual household and community
mitigation.

GUATEMALA stressed synergies between the three
Rio conventions, and highlighted involvement in regional
programmes, and its national measures to address drought.
JAPAN said climate change will increase drought and stressed
implementing appropriate agricultural measures for drought-
preparedness, and using the UNCCD to promote linkages
between desertification, land degradation and drought (DLDD).
He proposed: integrating drought reduction measures into
sustainable development and poverty eradication programmes;
accumulating scientific data for evaluating risk and predicting
drought occurrences; and strengthening international cooperation.
Business and Industry said engagement with all stakeholders
is essential to addressing drought. NIGERIA underscored: the
existence of complementarities among SLM, biodiversity and
integrated water resource management policies; the “material”
enhancement of the UNCCD as the focal point for DLDD; and
the need for more GEF funds to implement SLM projects.

Children and Youth elaborated the ecological and political
dimensions of drought, and called for: early warning systems to
facilitate preparedness and adaptation; inclusion of diverse voices
in policy development; and information and communication
technologies to empower drought-affected communities. Women
highlighted the role of women as environmental managers,
custodians of biodiversity and family providers, and said
women are the primary victims of drought. She called for
gender analysis on drought and desertification activities before
instituting policies, and use of women’s accumulated knowledge
to inform policy. KAZAKHSTAN called attention to its large-
scale land restoration project, and said its experience could be
applied to other countries in the Central Asian Region.

Panelist Neely highlighted the interlinked nature of the
themes, and emphasized the need to consider how policies would
work across sectors and to address root causes. She also stressed
the importance of participatory research that engages local
communities in identifying research priorities. Panelist Herrick
emphasized “localizing scientific knowledge” and “generalizing
local knowledge,” stressing the benefits of communication
between scientists and farmers. He also highlighted comments
calling for increased data collection, standardization and sharing.

IN THE CORRIDORS

While participants expressed general contentment with the
exchange of positions and said they would withhold judgment
of the session until the Chair’s IPM summary is distributed
on Friday, some contemplated what might be learned during
the lunch time briefing that Chair Verburg is slated to hold on
Thursday in Conference Room 2. The briefing is reportedly
being organized to solicit feedback on the planned organization
of work for CSD-17, in particular whether and how to allocate
issues to the working groups and the approach to be taken by
the High-Level Segment. Options for the latter are reported to
include the presentation of statements and the organization of
interactive round-table dialogues.




<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


